

Liberty County Water Control Improvement District #5

2722 Beaumont Avenue Liberty, Texas 77575 936-336-7878

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS

August 27, 2024

Notice is hereby given that sealed bids will be accepted by the Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 for RFP 24-08-001, Equipment Purchase – New Godwin DPC300 12" Skid mounted dewatering pump to assist in the emergency operations of pumps located at Main A and Main B pump stations in Liberty, Texas. Specifications for this project may be obtained from the Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5 webpage http://www.wcid5.com.

Bids are to be sealed and addressed to the General Manager with the bid number and name marked on the outside of the envelope. Bidders shall forward copy of their bid to the address shown below. Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5 does not accept bids submitted electronically. Late bids will be rejected as non-responsive. Bids will be publicly opened and read aloud in the Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5 Boardroom at the time and date below. Bidders are invited to attend the sealed bid opening.

BID NAME: Equipment Purchase

BID NO: RFP 24-08-001

DUE DATE: 5:30 PM, Tuesday, September 24th, 2024

MAIL OR DELIVER TO: Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5

2722 Beaumont Ave. Liberty, Texas 77575

Any questions relating to these requirements should be directed to James Poitevent, General Manager, at 713-201-6644 or poitevent@att.net.

Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5 reserves the right to accept or reject any or all bids, to waive technicalities and to take whatever action is in the best interest of the District.

All interested vendors are invited to submit a bid in accordance with the terms and conditions stated in this bid.

RESPONDENTS ARE STRONGLY ENCOURAGED TO CAREFULLY READ THE ENTIRE INVITATION.

James Poitevent, General Manager Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5 Publish: The Vindicator August 29th & September 5th, 2024

RFP 24-08-001

Equipment Purchase

12" Skid Mounted Trash/Dewatering Pump Bids due: 5:30 PM CST, September 24, 2024

Table of Contents

| Instructions to Bidders | |
|---|----|
| General Conditions of Bidding and Terms of Contract | 6 |
| Special Requirements/Instructions | 16 |
| Minimum Specifications | 21 |
| Bidder Information Form | 26 |
| Offer to Contract Form | 27 |
| Acceptance Form | 28 |
| Bid Form | 29 |
| Vendor References | 30 |
| Signature Page | 31 |
| Conflict of Interest Questionnaire | 32 |
| Good Faith Effort Determination Checklist | 33 |
| Notice of Intent | 34 |
| HUB Subcontracting Participation Declaration Form | 35 |
| House Bill 89 Verification | 39 |
| Senate Bill 252 Certification | 40 |
| Bid Affidavit | 41 |
| Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment Certification | 42 |

Instructions to Bidders

1. Bid Submission

Bids must be submitted in complete original form by mail or messenger to the following address:

Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 2722 Beaumont Ave. Liberty, Texas 77575

Bids will be accepted at the above address until the time and date specified herein, and immediately after will be publicly opened and read aloud.

All bids shall be tightly sealed in an opaque envelope and plainly marked with the Bid Number, Bid Name, Bid Due Date, and the Bidder's Name and Address; and shall be addressed to the Purchasing Agent.

Late bids will not be accepted and will be returned unopened to the bidder.

All bids submitted in response to this invitation shall become the property of Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 and will be a matter of public record available for review.

2. Bid Submissions during Time of Inclement Weather, Disaster, or Emergency

In case of inclement weather or any other unforeseen event causing the District to close for business on the date of a bid/proposal/statement of qualifications submission deadline, the bid closing will automatically be postponed until the next business day that County offices are open to the public. Should inclement weather conditions or any other unforeseen event cause delays in courier service operations, The District may issue an addendum to all known vendors interested in the project to extend the deadline. It will be the responsibility of the vendor to notify the District of their interest in the project, should these conditions impact their ability to submit a bid/proposal/statement of qualifications submission before the stated deadline. The District reserves the right to make the final judgement call to extend any deadline.

Should an emergency or unanticipated event interrupt normal District processes, and bid submissions cannot be received by Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 Purchasing Department's office by the exact time specified in the RFP and urgent County requirements preclude amendment to the RFP, the time specified for receipt of bids will be deemed to be extended to the same time of day specified in the solicitation on the first business day on which normal District processes resume.

3. Preparation of Bids

The bid shall be legibly printed in ink or typed.

If a unit price or extension already entered is to be altered, it shall be crossed out and initialed in ink by the bidder.

The bid shall be legally signed and shall include the complete address of the bidder.

Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 is exempt from Federal and State Sales Taxes, and such taxes shall not be included in bid prices.

4. Signatures

All bids, notifications, claims, and statements must be signed by an individual authorized to bind the bidder. The individual signing certifies, under penalty of perjury, that he or she has the legal authorization to bind the bidder.

5. District Holidays - 2024:

| January 1 | Monday | New Year's Day |
|-------------|----------|-----------------------------|
| January 15 | Monday | Martin Luther King, Jr. Day |
| February 19 | Monday | President's Day |
| March 29 | Friday | Good Friday |
| May 27 | Monday | Memorial Day |
| July 4 | Thursday | Independence Day |
| September 2 | Monday | Labor Day |

November 11 Monday Veterans Day
November 28-29 Thursday & Friday Thanksgiving
December 24-25 Monday Christmas

6. Rejection or Withdrawal

Submission of additional terms, conditions or agreements with the bid document are grounds for deeming a bid non-responsive and may result in bid rejection. Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 reserves the right to reject any and all bids and to waive any informalities and minor irregularities or defects in bids. Bids may be withdrawn in person by a bidder or authorized representative, provided their identity is made known and a receipt is signed for the bid, but only if the withdrawal is made prior to the time set for receipt of bids. Bids are an irrevocable offer and may not be withdrawn within 90 days after opening date.

7. Emergency/Declared Disaster Requirements

In the event of an emergency or if Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 is declared a disaster area, by The County, State, or Federal Government, this Acceptance of Offer may be subjected to unusual usage. Contractor shall service The District, during such an emergency or declared disaster under the same terms and conditions that apply during non-emergency/disaster conditions. The pricing as specified in this Acceptance of Offer shall apply to serving the District's needs regardless of the circumstances. If Contractor is unable to supply the services under the terms of the Acceptance of Offer, then Contractor shall provide proof of such disruption and a copy of the invoice from Contractor's supplier(s). Additional profit margin as a result of supplying services during an emergency or declared disaster shall not be permitted. In the event that additional equipment, supplies, and materials are required during the declared disaster, additional shipping, handling and drayage fees may apply.

8. Award

The bid will be awarded to the responsible, responsive bidder(s) whose bid, conforming to the solicitation, will be most advantageous to Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 – price and other factors considered. Unless otherwise specified in this RFP, Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 reserves the right to accept a bid in whole or in part, and to award by item or by group, whichever is deemed to be in the best interest of Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5. Any bidder who is in default to Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 reserves the right to clarify any contractual terms with the concurrence of the Contractor; however, any substantial nonconformity in the offer, as determined by Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5, shall be deemed non-responsive and the offer rejected.

In evaluating bids, Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 shall consider the qualifications of the bidders, and, where applicable, operating costs, delivery time, maintenance requirements, performance data, and guarantees of materials and equipment. In addition, Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 may con- duct such investigation as it deems necessary to assist in the evaluation of a bid and to establish the responsibility, qualifications, and financial ability of the bidders to fulfill the contract.

Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 reserves the right to award this contract on the basis of **lowest and best bid** in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas, to waive any formality or irregularity, to make awards to more than one offeror, and/or to reject any or all bids. In the event the lowest dollar offeror meeting specifications is not a awarded a contract, Offeror may appear before the Board of Directors and present evidence concerning Offeror responsibility after officially notifying the Office of the Purchasing Agent of Offeror's intent to appear.

9. Contract

A response to an RFP is an offer to contract with Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 based upon the terms, conditions, and specifications contained in the RFP. Bids do not become contracts unless and until they are executed by Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 Board of Directors, eliminating a formal signing of a separate contract. For that reason, all of the terms and conditions of the contract are contained in the RFP, unless any of the terms and conditions is modified by an RFP Amendment, a Contract Amendment, or by mutually agreed terms and conditions in the contract documents.

10. Waiver of Subrogation

Bidder and bidder's insurance carrier waive any and all rights whatsoever with regard to subrogation against Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 as an indirect party to any suit arising out of personal or property damages resulting from bidder's performance under this agreement.

11. Fiscal Funding

A multi-year contract (if requested by the specifications) continuing as a result of an extension option must include fiscal funding out. If, for any reason, funds are not appropriated to continue the contract, said contract shall become null and void.

12. Changes and Addenda to Bid Documents

Each change or addendum issued in relation to this RFP document will be on file in the Office of the Purchasing Agent. All such changes or addenda shall become part of the contract and all bidders shall be bound by such addenda. Information on all changes or addenda issued will be available at the Office of The District Purchasing Agent.

13. Specifications

Unless otherwise stated by the bidder, the bid will be considered as being in accordance with Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 's applicable standard specifications, and any special specifications outlined in the bid document. References to a particular trade name, manufacturer's catalogue, or model number are made for descriptive purposes to guide the bidder in interpreting the requirements of Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5, and should not be construed as excluding bids on other types of materials, equipment, and supplies. However, the bidder, if awarded a contract, will be required to furnish the particular item referred to in the specifications or description unless departure or substitution is clearly noted and described in the bid. Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 reserves the right to determine if equipment/ product being bid is an acceptable alternate. All goods shall be new unless otherwise so stated in the bid. Any unsolicited alternate bid, or any changes, insertions, or omissions to the terms and conditions, specifications, or any other requirements of the bid, may be considered non-responsive.

14. Delivery

Bids shall include all charges for delivery, packing, crating, containers, etc. Unless otherwise stated by the bidder (<u>in writing on the included Bid Form</u>), prices bid will be considered as being based on F.O.B. destination/delivered freight included.

15. Interpretation of Bid and/or Contract Documents

All inquiries shall be made within a reasonable time prior to the date and time fixed for the bid opening, in order that a written response in the form of an addendum, if required, can be processed before the bids are opened. Inquiries received that are not made in a timely fashion may or may not be considered.

16. Currency

Prices calculated by the bidder shall be stated in U.S. dollars.

17. Pricing

Prices shall be stated in units of quantity specified in the bid documents. In case of discrepancy in computing the amount of the bid, the unit price shall govern. LUMP SUM or COST PLUS IS NOT ALLOWED.

18. Notice to Proceed/Purchase Order

The successful bidder may not commence work under this contract until authorized to do so by the Purchasing Agent.

19. Certification

By signing the offer section of the Offer and Acceptance page, bidder certifies:

- The submission of the offer did not involve collusion or other anti-competitive practices.
- The bidder has not given, offered to give, nor intends to give at any time hereafter, any economic opportunity, future employment, gift, loan, gratuity, special discount, trip, favor, or service to any public servant in connection with the submitted offer.

The bidder hereby certifies that the individual signing the bid is an authorized agent for the bidder and has the authority to bind the bidder to the contract.

20. Definitions

"District" - Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5.

"Vendor" - The bidder whose proposal is accepted by Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5.

21. Historically Under-Utilized Business and Minority-Women Business Enterprise Participation

It is the desire of Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5 to increase the participation of Historically Under-utilized Business (HUB) including Minority (MBE) and women owned (WBE) businesses in its contracting and procurement programs. While the District does not have any preference or set aside programs in place, it is committed to a policy of equitable participations for these firms.

General Conditions of Bidding and Terms of Contract

By execution of this document, the vendor accepts all general and special conditions of the contract as outlined below and, in the specifications, and plans.

1. Bidding

- **1.1 Bids.** All bids must be submitted on the bid form furnished in this package.
- **1.2 Authorized Signatures.** The bid must be executed personally by the vendor, duly authorized partner of the partnership, or duly authorized officer of the corporation. If executed by an agent, a power of attorney or other evidence of authority to act on behalf of the vendor shall accompany the bid to become a valid bid.
- **1.3** Late Bids. Bids must be in the office of the Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 Purchasing Agent before or at the specified time and date bids are due. Bids received after the submission deadline shall be rejected as non-responsive and returned unopened.
- **1.4 Withdrawal of Bids Prior to Bid Opening.** A bid may be withdrawn before the opening date by submitting a written request to the Purchasing Agent. If time allows, the bidder may submit a new bid. Bidder assumes full responsibility for submitting a new bid before or at the specified time and date bids are due. Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 reserves the right to withdraw a request for bids before the opening date.
- **1.5 Withdrawal of Bids after Bid Opening.** Bidder agrees that its offer may not be withdrawn or cancelled by the vendor for a period of ninety (90) days following the date and time designated for the receipt of bids unless otherwise stated in the bid and/or specifications.
- **1.6 Bid Amounts.** Bids shall show net prices, extensions where applicable and net total. In case of conflict between unit price and extension, the unit price will govern. Any ambiguity in the bid as a result of omission, error, unintelligible or illegible wording shall be interpreted in the favor of Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5.
- 1.7 Exceptions and/or Substitutions. All bids meeting the intent of the specifications and plans will be considered for award. Vendors taking exception to the specifications and plans, or offering substitutions, shall state these exceptions in the section provided. If bid is made on an article other than the one specified, which a bidder considers comparable, the name and grade of said article must be specified in the bid and sufficient specifications and descriptive data must accompany same to permit thorough evaluation. The absence of stated exceptions and/or substitutions shall indicate that the vendor has not taken any exceptions to the specifications and shall be responsible to perform in strict accordance with the specifications. As a matter of practice, Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 rejects exception(s) and /or substitutions as non-responsive but reserves the right to accept any and/or all of the exception(s) and/or substitution(s) deemed to be in the best interest of Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5.
- **1.8 Alternates.** The Invitation for Bid and/or specifications may expressly allow bidder to submit an alternate bid. Presence of such an offer shall not be considered an indication of non-responsiveness.
- **1.9 Descriptions.** Unless otherwise specified, any reference to make, manufacturer and/or model used in the bid specifications is merely descriptive and not restrictive, and is used only to indicate type, style, or quality of material desired.
- **1.10 Bid Alterations.** Bids cannot be altered or amended after submission deadline. Any interlineations, alterations, or erasures made before opening time must be initialed by the signer of the bid, guaranteeing authenticity.
- **1.11 Tax Exempt Status.** Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 is exempt from federal excise tax and state sales tax. Unless the bid form or specifications specifically indicate otherwise, the bid price must be net, exclusive of above-mentioned taxes and will be so construed. Therefore, the bid price shall not include taxes.
- **1.12 Quantities.** Quantities indicated are estimated quantities only and are not a commitment to buy. Approximate usage does not constitute an order, but only implies the probable quantity that will be used. Commodities will be ordered on an as-needed basis. Bidder is responsible for accurate final counts.

- **1.13 Bid Award.** Award of contract shall be made to the most responsible, responsive bidder, whose offer is determined to be the best value, taking into consideration the relative importance of price. Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 reserves the right to be the sole judge as to whether items bid will serve the purpose intended. Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 reserves the right to accept or reject in part or in whole any bid submitted, and to waive any technicalities or informalities for the best interest of the District. Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 reserves the right to award based upon individual line items, sections or total bid. MUST BE IN SYSTEM OF AWARDS MANAEMENT AS ACTIVE AND NOT DEBARRED. CONTRACTOR MUST ENSURE REGISTRATION IS ACTIVE AT ALL TIMES. IT IS FREE TO REGISTER AT SAMS.GOV.
- **1.14 Silence of Specifications for Complete Units.** All materials, equipment and/or parts that will become a portion of the completed work, including items not specifically stated herein but, necessary to render the service(s) complete and operational per the specifications, are to be included in the bid price. Vendor may be required to furnish evidence that the service, as bid, will meet or exceed these requirements.
- **1.15** Addenda. Any interpretations, corrections or changes to the specifications and plans will be made by addenda no later than forty-eight (48) hours prior to the bid opening. Addenda will be posted on the Purchasing web site. Vendors are responsible for monitoring the web site in order to remain informed on addenda. Vendors shall acknowledge receipt of all addenda with submission of bid.
- **1.16 General Bid Bond/Surety Requirements.** Failure to furnish bid bond/surety, if requested, will result in bid being declared non-responsive. Non-responsive bids will not be considered for award.
- **1.17 General Insurance Requirements.** Failure to furnish Affidavit of Insurance, if required in these specifications, will result in bid being declared non-responsive. Non-responsive bids will not be considered for award.
- 1.18 Responsiveness. A responsive bid shall substantially conform to the requirements of this Invitation to Bid and/or specifications contained herein. Bidders who substitute any other terms, conditions, specifications and/or requirements or who qualify their bids in such a manner as to nullify or limit their liability to the contracting entity shall have their bids deemed non-responsive. Also, bids containing any clause that would limit contracting authority shall be considered non-responsive. Examples of non-responsive bids include but shall not be limited to: a) bids that fail to conform to required delivery schedules as set forth in the bid request; b) bids with prices qualified in such a manner that the bid price cannot be determined, such as with vague wording that may include "price in effect at the time of delivery," and c) bids made contingent upon award of other bids currently under consideration.
- **1.19 Responsible Standing of Bidder.** To be considered for award, bidder must at least: have the ability to obtain adequate financial resources, be able to comply with required or proposed delivery/completion schedule, have a satisfactory record of performance; have a satisfactory record of integrity and ethics, and be otherwise qualified and eligible to receive award.
- **1.20 Proprietary Data.** Bidder may, by written request, indicate as confidential any portion(s) of a bid that contain proprietary information, including manufacturing and/or design processes exclusive to the vendor. Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 will protect from public disclosure such portions of a bid, unless directed otherwise by legal authority, including existing Open Records Acts.
- **1.21 Public Bid Opening.** Bidders are invited to be present at the opening of bids. After the official opening of bids, a period of not less than one week is necessary to evaluate bids. The amount of time necessary for bid evaluation may vary and is determined solely by The District. Following the bid evaluation, all bids submitted are available for public review.

2. Performance

- **2.1 Design, Strength, and Quality.** Design, strength, and quality of materials and workmanship must conform to the highest standards of manufacturing and engineering practices. The apparent silence of specifications and/or plans as to any detailed description concerning any point shall be regarded as meaning that only the best commercial practices are to prevail. All interpretations of these specifications and/or plans shall be made on the basis of this statement.
- **2.2** Age and Manufacture. All tangible goods being bid must be new and unused, unless otherwise specified, in first-class condition, of current manufacture, and furnished ready to use. All items not specifically mentioned that are required for a complete unit shall be furnished.

- **2.3 Delivery Location.** All deliveries will be made to the address(es) specified on the purchase order during normal working hours of 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, unless otherwise authorized by the Purchasing Agent or designee.
- **2.4 Delivery Schedule.** Delivery time may be an important consideration in the evaluation of best value. The maximum number of days necessary for delivery ARO shall be stated in the space, if provided, on the bid form.
- **2.5 Delivery Charges.** All delivery and freight charges, F.O.B. destination shown on Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 purchase order, as necessary to perform contract are to be included in the bid price.
- **2.6 Installation Charges.** All charges for assembly, installation and set-up shall be included in the bid price. Unless otherwise stated, assembly, installation and set-up will be required.
- **2.7 Operating Instructions and Training.** Clear and concise operating instructions and descriptive literature will be provided in English, if requested. On-site detailed training in the safe and efficient use and general maintenance of item(s) purchased shall be provided as needed at the request of Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5. Instructions and training shall be at no additional cost to The District.
- **2.8 Storage.** Bidder agrees to provide storage of custom ordered materials, if requested, for up to thirty (30) calendar days.
- **2.9 Compliance with Federal, State, County, and Local Laws.** Bids must comply with all federal, state, county and local laws, including, but not limited to, all applicable standard safety, emission, and noise control requirements. Any vehicles or equipment shall contain all standard safety, emission, and noise control requirements required for the types and sizes of equipment at the time of their manufacture. The contractor agrees, during the performance of work or service, to comply with all applicable codes and ordinances of Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 or the State of Texas as they may apply, as these laws may now read, or as they may hereafter be changed or amended.
- **2.10 OSHA.** The bidder will certify all equipment complies with all regulations and conditions stipulated under the Williams-Steiger Occupational Safety and Health Act of 1971, as amended. The successful bidder will further certify that all items furnished under this project will conform and comply with federal and State of Texas OSHA standards. The successful bidder will agree to indemnify and hold harmless Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 for any and all damages that may be assessed against The District.
- **2.11 Patents and Copyrights.** The successful vendor agrees to protect the District from claims involving infringements of patents and/or copyrights.
- **2.12 Samples, Demonstrations and Testing.** At Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 's request and direction, bidder shall provide product samples and/or testing of items bid to ensure compliance with specifications. Samples, demonstrations and/or testing may be requested at any point prior to or following bid award. Samples, demonstrations and/or testing may be requested upon delivery and/or any point during the term of resulting contract. All samples (including return thereof), demonstrations, and/or testing shall be at the expense of the bidder/vendor.
- **2.13** Acceptability. All articles enumerated in the bid shall be subject to inspection by an officer designated for that purpose by Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5. If found inferior to the quality called for, or not equal in value to the specifications, deficient in workmanship or otherwise, this fact shall be certified to the Purchasing Agent, who shall have the right to reject the whole or any part of the same. Items and/or work determined to be contrary to specifications must be replaced at the vendor's expense. Inferior items not retrieved by the vendor within thirty (30) calendar days or an otherwise agreed upon time, shall become the property of The District. If disposal of such items warrants an expense, an amount equal to the disposal expense will be deducted from amounts payable to the vendor.
- **2.14 Maintenance.** Maintenance required for equipment bid should be available within the District by a manufacturer authorized maintenance facility. Cost for this service shall be shown on the bid sheet as requested or on a separate sheet, as required. If Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 opts to include maintenance, it shall be so stated in the purchase order and said cost will be included. Service will commence only upon expiration of applicable warranties and should be priced accordingly.

- **2.15 Material Safety Data Sheets.** Under the "Hazardous Communications Act," common known as the "Texas Right to Know Act," a bidder must provide the user department, with each delivery, material safety data sheets which are applicable to hazardous substances defined in the Act. Failure of the bidder to furnish this documentation will be cause to reject any bid applying thereto.
- **2.16 Evaluation.** Evaluation shall be used as a determinant as to which services are the most efficient and/or most economical for The District. It shall be based on all factors having a bearing on price and performance of the items in the user environment. All bids are subject to tabulation by the Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 Purchasing Department and recommendation to Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 Commissioners' Court. Compliance with all bid requirements and needs of the using department are considered in evaluating bids. Pricing is not the only criteria for making a recommendation. The Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 Purchasing Department reserves to right to contact any bidder, at any time, to clarify, verify or requirement information with regard to this bid.

3. Purchase Orders and Payment

- **3.1 Purchase Orders.** A purchase order(s) shall be generated by the Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 Purchasing Agent to the successful vendor. The purchase order number must appear on all itemized invoices and packing slips. The District will not be held responsible for any work orders placed and/or performed without a valid current purchase order number. Payment will be made for all services rendered and accepted by the contract administrator for which a valid invoice has been received.
- **3.2 Invoices.** All invoices shall reference the Purchase Order number. Invoices shall reference the bid item number or a detailed description for each item invoiced. If an item purchased and itemized on the invoice does not correspond to an item in any of the categories awarded to the vendor, invoice shall reference the item as "N/C" to indicate that it is a non-contract item. This requirement is to assist The District in verifying contract pricing on all invoices. Payment will be made under terms of net thirty (30) days unless otherwise agreed upon by seller and the purchasing department.
- **3.3 Prompt Payment.** In accordance with the State of Texas Prompt Payment Act, Article 601f V.T.C.S., payment will be made after receive and acceptance by The District of the merchandise ordered and of a valid invoice. Successful bidder(s) is required to pay subcontractors within ten (10) days after the successful bidder receives payment from The District.

4. Contract

- **4.1 Contract Definition.** The General Conditions of Bidding and Terms of Contract, Specifications, Plans, Bidding Forms, Addenda, and any other documents made a part of this bid shall constitute the complete bid. This bid, when duly accepted by Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5, shall constitute a contract equally binding between the successful bidder and Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5.
- **4.2 Contract Agreement.** Once a contract is awarded, the unit prices offered by the successful bidder shall remain firm for the term of the contract. Contract shall commence on date of award and, upon agreement between vendor(s) and Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5, may be renewed annually for up to four (4) additional years.
- **4.3 Change Order.** No different or additional terms will become part of this contract with the exception of a change order. No oral statement of any person shall modify or otherwise change, or affect the terms, conditions or specifications stated in the resulting contract. All change orders to the contract will be made in writing and at the discretion and approval of Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5. No change order will be binding unless signed by an authorized representative of The District and the vendor.

4.4 Termination

Termination for Cause. District may terminate the contract, by providing vendor seven (7) days' notice if the vendor:

- 1. Repeatedly fails to supply necessary equipment, material, or properly skilled workers under this agreement;
- 2. Breaches any obligations under this agreement:
- 3. Disregards applicable laws, statutes ordinances, codes, rules and regulations;
- 4. Intentionally damages District's assets;
- 5. Repeatedly fails to perform its duties for the District; or
- 6. Becomes insolvent or files an action for bankruptcy.

Termination for Convenience. District may terminate the contract, by providing bidder thirty (30) days' notice, in whole or, from time to time, in part if the District determines that a termination is in the District's best interest without cause.

Termination Activities. Upon receipt of written notice from the District of such termination, the bidder shall:

- 1. Cease operations as directed by the District in the notice;
- Take actions necessary, or that the Owner may direct, for the protection and preservation of the Work; and
- 3. Except for Work directed to be performed prior to the effective date of termination stated in the notice, perform no further Work.

Termination Damages In the event of a Termination, the District reserves the right to award canceled contracts to the next lowest responsive bidder.

In the event of a Termination for Cause, the District reserves all its remedies in law or equity.

In the event of a Termination for Convenience, bidder will be entitled to reimbursement for work and materials actually performed and supplied, as mutually agreed upon by District and bidder. Bidder shall not be entitled to recover for unearned or anticipated work.

- **4.6 Conflict of Interest.** Employees of the District are not permitted to maintain financial interest in, or receive payment, directly or indirectly, borrow from, lend to, invest in, or engage in any substantial financial transaction with any individual, organization, supplier, or subcontractor who does business with the District without disclosure. When conflict of interest is discovered, it shall be grounds for termination of contract.
- **4.7 Injuries or Damages Resulting from Negligence.** Successful vendor shall defend, indemnify and save harmless Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 and all its officers, agents and employees from all suits, actions, or other claims of any character, name and description brought for or on account of any injuries or damages received or sustained by any person, persons, or property on account of any negligent act or fault of the successful vendor, or of any agent, employee, subcontractor or supplier in the execution of, or performance under, any contract which may result from bid award. Successful vendor shall pay any judgment with cost which may be obtained against Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 growing out of such injury or damages.
- **4.8 Interest by Public Officials.** No public official shall have interest in this contract, in accordance with Texas Local Government Code.
- **4.9 Warranty.** The successful vendor shall warrant that all materials utilized in the performance of this contract shall conform to the proposed specifications and/or all warranties as stated in the Uniform Commercial Code and be free from all defects in material, workmanship and title.
- **4.10 Uniform Commercial Code.** The successful vendor and Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5 agree that both parties have all rights, duties, and remedies available as stated in the Uniform Commercial Code.
- **4.11 Venue.** This agreement will be governed and construed according to the laws of the State of Texas. This agreement is performable in The District of Liberty County, Texas.
- **4.12** Sale, Assignment, or Transfer of Contract. The successful vendor shall not sell, assign, transfer or convey this contract, in whole or in part, without the prior written consent of Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5.
- **4.13 Silence of Specifications.** The apparent silence of these specifications as to any detailed description concerning any point, shall be regarded as meaning that only the best commercial practices are to prevail. All interpretations of these specifications shall be made on the basis of this statement.
- Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) Mandated Contract Clauses Applicable to the work and services being performed by CONTRACTOR under the parties' AGREEMENT, the following provisions are adopted and form part of this AGREEMENT:
 - 5.1 DAMAGES, 2 CFR §200.326 Appendix II to Part 200 (A)
 - a. All work to be performed under this AGREEMENT shall be timely commenced. A breach of this AGREEMENT by Contractor would cause substantial delay in the completion of the required services affecting the safety and welfare of the public.
 - b. In the event of Contractor's breach of its performance obligations, the District shall have all rights and remedies against Contractor as provided by law.

5.2 TERMINATION RIGHTS, 2 CFR §200.326 Appendix II to Part 200 (B)

Termination for Convenience: Whenever the interests of the District so require, District may terminate the parties' Agreement, in whole or in part, for the convenience of the District. District shall give Contractor thirty (30) days prior written notice of termination specifying the portions of the Agreement to be terminated and when such termination will become effective. If only portions of the parties' agreement are terminated, Contractor has the right to withdraw from the parties' Agreement, without adverse action or claims. In the event of a termination for convenience by the District, Contractor shall be entitled to payment for all work and services performed by it up to the effective date of such termination.

Termination for Cause: The District may, by written notice of default to Contractor, terminate the parties' Agreement, in whole or in part, if the Contractor fails to satisfactorily perform any provisions of the parties' agreement after a period of ten (10) following Contractor's receipt of a Notice of Deficiency provided by the District.

5.3 EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY CLAUSE (2 CFR §200.326 Appendix II to Part 200-(C)

If applicable to the work and services performed by CONTRACTOR under the AGREEMENT, during the performance of the AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall comply with the Equal Employment Opportunity Clause (41 CFR 60-1.4(b)):

- a. CONTRACTOR will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. CONTRACTOR will take affirmative action to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin. Such action shall include, but not be limited to the following: Employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoff or termination; rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including apprenticeship. AGREEMENTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices to be provided setting forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause.
- b. CONTRACTOR will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees placed by or on behalf of the CONTRACTOR, state that all qualified applicants will receive considerations for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.
- c. CONTRACTOR will send to each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other agreement or understanding, a notice to be provided advising the said labor union or workers' representatives of the CONTRACTOR'S commitments under this section, and shall post copies of the notice in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment.
- d. CONTRACTOR will comply with all provisions of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and of the rules, regulations, and relevant orders of the Secretary of Labor.
- e. CONTRACTOR will furnish all information and reports required by Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and by rules, regulations, and orders of the Secretary of Labor for purpose of investigation to ascertain compliance with such rules, regulations, and orders.

- f. In the event of the CONTRACTOR'S noncompliance with the nondiscrimination clauses of this AGREEMENT or with any of the said rules, regulations or orders, this AGREEMENT may be canceled, terminated, or suspended in whole or in part and the CONTRACTOR may be declared ineligible for further government contracts or federally assisted construction contracts in accordance with procedures authorized in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, and such other sanctions may be imposed and remedies invoked as provided in Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, or by rule, regulation, or order of the Secretary of Labor, or as otherwise provided by law.
- g. CONTRACTOR will include the portion of the sentence immediately preceding paragraph (1) and the provisions of subparagraphs 1 through 7 in every subcontract or purchase order unless exempted by rules, regulations, or orders of the Secretary of Labor issued pursuant to section 204 of Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, so that such provisions will be binding upon each subcontractor or contractor. CONTRACTOR will take such action with respect to any subcontract or purchase order as the administering agency may direct as a means of enforcing such provisions, including sanctions for noncompliance: provided, however, that in the event CONTRACTOR becomes involved in, or is threatened with, litigation subcontractor or contractor as a result of such direction by the administering agency the CONTRACTOR may request the United States to enter into such litigation to protect the interest of the United States.

5.4 DAVIS-BACON ACT AND COPELAND "ANTI-KICKBACK" ACT, 2 CFR §200.326 Appen. II to Part 200 (D)

If applicable to the work and services performed by CONTRACTOR under the parties' AGREEMENT:

- a. Bacon-Davis Act: Applicable to construction or repair of public buildings or public works. see FEMA Public Assistance Program and Policy Guide, Ch.2(V)(G)(2), page 32 (FP 104-009-2/January 2016);
- b. Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act: In contracts subject to the Davis-Bacon Act, CONTRACTOR shall comply with the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 U.S.C. §3145), as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 3, "Contractors and Subcontractors on Public Building or Public Work Financed in Whole or in Part by Loans or Grants from the United States"). The Act provides that the contractor and subcontractor must be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any person employed in the construction, completion, or repair of public work, to give up any part of the compensation to which he or she is otherwise entitled. The GOVERNMENT must report all suspected or reported violations to the appropriate Federal agency.
- c. CONTRACTOR shall comply with 18 U.S.C. § 874, 40 U.S.C. § 3145, and the requirements of 29 C.F.R. pt. 3 as may be applicable, which are incorporated by reference into this AGREEMENT.
- d. CONTRACTOR or subcontractor shall insert in any subcontract the clause above and such other clauses as FEMA may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the compliance by any subcontractor or lower tier subcontract with all of these contract clauses.
- e. A breach of the AGREEMENT clause above may be grounds for termination of the AGREEMENT, and for debarment as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 C.F.R. §5.12.

5.5 CONTRACT WORK HOURS AND SAFETY STANDARDS ACT, 2 CFR §200.326 Appendix II to Part 200 (E) (40 U.S.C. 3701-3708)

Contracts in excess of \$100,000 that involve the employment of mechanics or laborers shall comply with 40 U.S.C. 3702 and 3704, as supplemented by Department of Labor regulations (29 CFR Part 5). Under 40 U.S.C. 3702 of the Act, each contractor and its subcontractors shall compute the wages of every mechanic and laborer on the basis of a standard work week of 40 hours. Work in excess of the standard work week is permissible provided that the worker is compensated at a rate of not less than one and a half times the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of 40 hours in the work week.

- a. Overtime requirements. No contractor or subcontractor contracting for any part of the contract work which may require or involve the employment of laborers or mechanics shall require or permit any such laborer or mechanic in any workweek in which he or she is employed on such work to work in excess of forty hours in such workweek unless such laborer or mechanic receives compensation at a rate not less than one and one halftimes the basic rate of pay for all hours worked in excess of forty hours in such workweek.
- b. Violation: liability for unpaid wages: liquidated damages. In the event of any violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (a) of this section the contractor and any subcontractor responsible therefor shall be liable for the unpaid wages. In addition, such contractor and subcontractor shall be liable to the United States (in the case of work done under contract for the District of Columbia or a territory, to such District or to such territory), for liquidated damages. Such liquidated damages shall be computed with respect to each individual laborer or mechanic, including watchmen and guards, employed in violation of the clause set forth in paragraph (a) of this section, in the sum of \$10 for each calendar day on which such individual was required or permitted to work in excess of the standard workweek of forty hours without payment of the overtime wages required by the clause set forth in paragraph (a) of this section.
- c. Withholding for unpaid wages and liquidated damages. The GOVERNMENT shall upon its own action or upon written request of an authorized representative of the Department of Labor withhold or cause to be withheld, from any moneys payable on account of work performed by the contractor or subcontractor under any such contract or any other Federal contract with the same prime contractor, or any other federally- assisted contract subject to the Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act, which is held by the same prime contractor, such sums as may be determined to be necessary to satisfy any liabilities of such contractor or subcontractor for unpaid wages and liquidated damages as provided in the clause set forth in paragraph (b) of this section.
- d. The contractor and subcontractor shall insert in any subcontract the clauses set forth in paragraphs (a) through (d) of this section and also a clause requiring the subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.

5.6 RIGHTS TO INVENTIONS MADE UNDER A CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT, 2 CFR §200.326 Appendix II to Part 200 (F)

If applicable to the work and services performed by CONTRACTOR under the parties' AGREEMENT and if the Federal award meets the definition of "funding agreement" under 37 CFR §401.2 (a) and the GOVERNMENT wishes to enter into a contract with a small business firm or nonprofit organization regarding the substitution of parties, assignment or performance of experimental, developmental, or research work under that "funding agreement," the GOVERNMENT must comply with the requirements of 37 CFR Part 401, "Rights to Inventions Made by Nonprofit Organizations and Small Business."

5.7 CLEAN AIR ACT AND FEDERAL WATER POLLUTION CONTROL ACT, 2 CFR §200.326 Appendix II to Part 200 (G)

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all applicable standards, orders or regulations issued pursuant to the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q.) and the Federal Water Pollution Control Act as amended (33 U.S.C. 1251- 1387). Violations must be reported to the Federal awarding agency and the Regional Office of the Environmental Protection Agency (EPA).

CONTRACTOR shall include the foregoing requirements in each subcontract exceeding \$100,000.

5.8 ENERGY EFFICIENCY AND CONSERVATION, 2 CFR §200.326 Appendix II to Part 200 (H)

If applicable to the work and services performed by CONTRACTOR under the parties' AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall comply with the mandatory standards and policies of the state regulation promulgated in accordance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (42 U.S.C. § 6201).

5.9 DEBARMENT AND SUSPENSION, 2 CFR §200.326 Appendix II to Part 200 (I)

This AGREEMENT is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180 and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000. As such, the CONTRACTOR is required to verify that none of the contractor, its principals (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.995), or its affiliates (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 C.F.R. § 180.935).

- a. The CONTRACTOR must comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C and must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it enters into.
- b. This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by GOVERNMENT. If it is later determined that the CONTRACTOR did not comply with 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to GOVERNMENT, the Federal Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or debarment.
- c. The CONTRACTOR agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 C.F.R. pt. 180, subpart C and 2 C.F.R. pt. 3000, subpart C AGREEMENT is valid and throughout the period of performance. The CONTRACTOR further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its lower tier covered transactions.

5.10 BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT, 2 CFR §200.326 Appendix II to Part 200 (J)

CONTRACTOR must file with the GOVERNMENT the required certification. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a member of Congress in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant or any other award covered by 31 U.S.C. 1352. Each tier must also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the non-Federal award. If not provided with the bid response, CONTRACTOR must complete and submit the Certification Regarding Lobbying Form.

5.11 PROCUREMENT OF RECOVERED MATERIALS, 2 CFR §200.326 Appendix II to Part 200 (K) and 2 CFR §200.322)

- In the performance of this contract, the Contractor shall make maximum use of products containing recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be acquired-
 - (a) Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the contract performance schedule;
 - ii. (b) Meeting contract performance requirements; or
 - iii. (c) At a reasonable price.

b. (2) Information about this requirement is available at EPA's Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines web site, http://www.epa.gov/cpg/. The list of EPA- designate items is available at: http://www.epa.gov/cpg/products/htm.

5.12 AGREEMENTING WITH SMALL AND MINORITY BUSINESSES, WOMEN'S BUSINESS ENTERPRISES, AND LABOR SURPLUS AREA FIRMS (2 CFR §200.321) (L)

Should the CONTRACTOR subcontract any of the work under this AGREEMENT, CONTRACTOR shall take the following affirmative steps: place qualified small and minority businesses and women's business enterprises on solicitation lists; assure that small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises are solicited whenever they are potential sources; divide total requirements, when economically feasible, into smaller tasks or quantities to permit maximum participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; establish delivery schedules, where the requirement permits, which encourage participation by small and minority businesses, and women's business enterprises; and use the services and assistance, as appropriate, of such organizations as the Small Business Administration and the Minority Business Development Agency of the Department of Commerce.

5.13 ACCESS TO RECORDS (M)

- a. CONTRACTOR agrees to provide GOVERNMENT, the FEMA Administrator, the Comptroller General of the United States, or any of their authorized representatives' access to any books, documents, papers, and records of the Contractor which are directly pertinent to this AGREEMENT for the purposes of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions.
- b. CONTRACTOR agrees to permit any of the foregoing parties to reproduce by any means whatsoever or to copy excerpts and transcriptions as reasonably needed.
- c. (3) CONTRACTOR agrees to provide the FEMA Administrator or his authorized representatives' access to construction or other work sites pertaining to the work being completed under the contract.

5.14 SEAL, LOGO AND FLAGS (N)

CONTRACTOR shall not use the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's seal(s), logos, crests, or reproductions of flags or likenesses of the U.S. Department of Homeland Security's agency officials without specific FEMA preapproval.

5.15 COMPLIANCE WITH FEDERAL LAW, REGULATIONS AND EXECUTIVE ORDERS (O)

This is an acknowledgement that FEMA financial assistance will be used to fund the AGREEMENT only. CONTRACTOR will comply will all federal law, regulations, executive orders, FEMA policies, procedures, and directives.

5.16 NO OBLIGATION BY FEDERAL GOVERNMENT (P)

The Federal Government is not a party to this AGREEMENT and is not subject to any obligations or liabilities to GOVERNMENT, CONTRACTOR, or any other party pertaining to any matter resulting from the contract.

5.17 PROGRAM FRAUD AND FALSE OR FRAUDULENT STATEMENTS OR RELATED ACTS (Q)

CONTRACTOR acknowledges that 31 U.S.C. Chap. 38 (Administrative Remedies for False Claims and Statements) applies to the CONTRACTOR'S actions pertaining to this contract.

Special Requirements/Instructions

The following requirements and instructions supersede General Requirements where applicable.

1. Bid Requirement

Each bidder shall ensure that required parts of the bid are completed with accuracy and submitted as per the requirements within this specifications packet, including any addenda.

Bidder is responsible for submitting one (1) *original* bid to include a <u>completed copy</u> of this specifications packet <u>in its entirety</u>; and three (3) numbered bid *copies* to include <u>at a minimum</u> all pages requiring completion and/or marked with instructions to be returned with bid submission and any other documentation requested within these specifications.

All bids shall be tightly sealed in an opaque envelope or box and plainly marked "SEALED BID." The outside of the envelope or box shall also include: Bid Number, Bid Name, Bid Due Date, Bidder's Name and Address; and shall be addressed to the General Manager.

The District shall not be responsible for any effort or cost expended in the preparation of a response to this RFP. All protests should be coordinated through the Purchasing Office prior to award recommendation to the District Board of Directors.

2.

Vendor Registration: SAM (System for Award Management)

Vendors doing business with the District are required to be registered with The System for Award Management (SAM), with an "active" status. The System for Award Management (SAM) is the Official U.S. Government system that consolidated the capabilities of CCR/FedReg, ORCA, and EPLS. There is NO fee to register for this site. Entities may register at no cost directly from the SAM website at: https://www.sam.gov

<u>Bidders are required to submit proof of their firm's ACTIVE SAM (System for Award Management) status with Bid Submission.</u>

3. Submission of FORM 1295 (Texas Ethics Commission)

In accordance with House Bill 1295 (passed January 1, 2016), Vendors entering into contracts and professional agreements with the District will be required to complete a Certificate of Interested Parties (FORM 1295), unless contract is considered exempt as described below.

In 2017, the Texas legislature amended the law to require Form 1295 to include an "unsworn declaration" which includes, among other things, the date of birth and address of the authorized representative signing the form. The unsworn declaration, including the date of birth and address of the signatory, replaces the notary requirement that applied to contracts entered into before January 1, 2018. The TEC filing application does not capture the date of birth or street address of the signatory and it will not appear on forms that are filed using the TEC filing application.

Changes to the law requiring certain businesses to file a Form 1295 are in effect for contracts entered into or amended on or after January 1, 2018. The changes exempt businesses from filing a Form 1295 for certain types of contracts and replace the need for a completed Form 1295 to be notarized. Instead, the person filing a 1295 needs to complete an "unsworn declaration."

FORM 1295 Exemptions: What type of contracts are exempt from the Form 1295 filing requirement under the amended law? The amended law adds to the list of types of contract exempt from the Form 1295 filing requirement. A completed Form 1295 is not required for:

- a sponsored research contract of an institution of higher education;
- an interagency contract of a state agency or an institution of higher education;
- a contract related to health and human services if: the value of the contract cannot be determined at the time the contract is executed; and o any qualified vendor is eligible for the contract;

- a contract with a publicly traded business entity, including a wholly owned subsidiary of the business entity;
- a contract with an electric utility, as that term is defined by Section 31.002, Utilities Code; and
- a contract with a gas utility, as that term is defined by Section 121.001, Utilities Code.

When submitting a bid or proposal to the District vendors will be required to submit both:

1. Submit a FORM 1295 online via the Texas Ethics Commission website link below.

Vendors must enter the required information on Form 1295 and print a copy of the completed form.

The form will include a certification of filing that will contain a unique certification number.

2. Submit a FORM 1295 hard copy (completed & signed by an Authorized Agent of the Awarded Vendor), to Liberty County Water Control and Improvement District #5.

FORM 1295, Completion Instructions, and Login Instructions are available via the Texas Ethics Commission Website at:

https://www.ethics.state.tx.us/whatsnew/elf_info_form1295.htm

4. Multiple Vendor Award

Liberty County Water Control and Improvement District #5 reserves the right to award this contract to more than one vendor at The District's discretion.

5. Delivery

If delivery is required, all items must be packaged so as to be protected from damage during shipping and handling. Any item(s) damaged in shipping must be replaced in kind, or repaired, by the contractor, at the discretion of, and at no additional charge to, Liberty County Water Control and Improvement District #5.

6. Payment

Liberty County Water Control and Improvement District #5 will pay original invoices that clearly itemize the goods and/or services provided as to quantity, part number, description, price, applicable discount (if any), labor charges showing time differential, if applicable and if previously agreed to, and delivery, installation, and set-up costs, if applicable and if previously agreed to. Only charges as stated on the Bid Form(s) submitted as a part of the bid will be considered.

Invoices must indicate Liberty County Water Control and Improvement District #5 as applicable, the address to which the product(s) and/or service(s) were delivered, and the applicable purchase order number. Invoices will be matched to delivery tickets prior to payment; therefore, all delivery tickets should have an accurate description of the product(s) and/or service(s).

Invoices shall be submitted to: Liberty County Water Control and Improvement District #5

Attention: Accounts Payable 2722 Beaumont Ave.

Liberty, TX 77575

7. Usage Reports

Liberty County Water Control and Improvement District #5 reserves the right to request, and receive at no additional cost, up to Two (2) times during the contract period, a usage report detailing the products and/or services furnished to date under a contract resulting from this RFP. The reports must be furnished no later than five (5) working days after written request and itemize all purchases to date by Liberty County Water Control and Improvement District #5, description of each item purchased, including manufacturer, quantity of each item purchased, per unit and extended price of each item purchased, and total amount and price of all items purchased.

8. Indemnification/ Hold Harmless

Contractor agrees to RELEASE, DEFEND, INDEMNIFY, and HOLD HARMLESS District its officers, directors, employees, and agents, from and against any and all claims, losses and expenses, including, without limitation, all costs, demands, damages, suits, judgments, fines, penalties, liabilities, debts, attorneys' fees, and causes of action of whatsoever nature or character, and further including, without limitation, any and all claims, losses and expenses for property damage, pollution, bodily injury, illness, disease, death, or loss of services, wages, consortium or society (the foregoing being herein individually and collectively referred to as "Claims, Losses and Expenses") directly or indirectly arising out of or related to bodily injury, illness, disease or death of, or damage to property of, Contractor, or its subcontractors, or its or their employees, in any way directly or indirectly, arising out of, or related to, the performance or subject matter of this Agreement or the ingress, egress, loading, or unloading of cargo or personnel, or any presence on any premises (whether land, building, vehicle, platform, aircraft, vessel or otherwise) owned, operated, chartered, leased, used, controlled or hired by District or Contractor or its subcontractors, and expressly including any sole or concurrent negligence, fault or strict liability (of whatever nature or character, preexisting conditions, and/or premises defects) of District or any other person or entity. The indemnity obligations set forth in this Section shall include any medical, compensation or other benefits paid by District in connection with employees of Contractor (or its subcontractors, if any) and shall apply even if the employee is determined to be the statutory or borrowed employee of District.

9. General Insurance Requirements

| aoa. | and itaquitanion | |
|------|--|-------------------------------|
| 9.1 | Commercial General Liability Limits | |
| | Each Occurrence | \$1,000,000 |
| | Fire Damage to Rented Premises | \$ 100,000 |
| | Medical Expenses | \$ 5,000 |
| | Personal & Adv. Injury | \$1,000,000 |
| | General Aggregate | \$2,000,000 |
| | Products-Comp/Ops Aggregate | \$2,000,000 |
| 9.2 | Auto Liability Limits: | |
| | Combined Single Limits for Owned, Hired & No | n-Owned \$1,000,000 |
| 9.3 | Umbrella Liability Limits: | |
| | Each Occurrence | \$1,000,000 |
| | Aggregate | \$1,000,000 |
| 9.4 | Workers' Compensation Limits: | |
| | Workers' Compensation | Statutory |
| | Employer's Liability | \$500,000/\$500/000/\$500,000 |

Prior to commencement of work, Vendor shall furnish ACORD 25 (2010/05) certificates verifying coverage and limits outlined above and other provision set forth below. Such insurance shall be provided by carriers rated by AM Best & Company and deemed acceptable by the District.

Certificates shall document Waiver of Subrogation provisions in favor of the District on Commercial General Liability, Auto Liability, Umbrella Liability, and Workers Compensation policies.

Certificates shall document Additional Insured provisions in favor of the District on Commercial General Liability, Auto Liability, and Umbrella Liability policies.

Companies furnishing Temporary Personnel shall amend their Workers Compensation policy to include Alternate Employer Endorsement (Texas -- WC 000301) naming Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5.

Certificates shall document reasonable cancellation provisions to protect the interests of the District.

Coverage and Limits set forth above are minimum requirements and may be adjusted by the District to include higher limits and other coverage such as Professional Liability, Pollution Liability, USL&H, Jones Act, and Protection & Indemnity.

10. Workers' Compensation Insurance

- 10.1 Definitions:
 - 10.1.1 Certificate of coverage ("Certificate") A copy of a certificate of insurance, a certificate of authority to self-insure issued by the commission, or a coverage agreement, DWC-81, DWC-82, DWC-83, or DWC-84 showing statutory workers' compensation insurance coverage for the person's or entity's employees providing services on a project, for the duration of the project.
 - 10.1.2 Duration of the project Includes the time from the beginning of the work on the project until the contractor's/person's work on the project has been completed and accepted by the District.
 - 10.1.3 Persons providing services on the project ("subcontractor") in article 406.096 Includes all persons or entities performing all or part of the services under the contractor has undertaken to perform on the project, regardless of whether that person contracted directly with the contractor and regardless of whether that person has employees. This includes, without limitation, independent contractors, subcontractor, leasing companies, motor carriers, owner-operators, employees of any such entity, or employees of any entity which furnishes persons to provide services on the project. "Services" includes, without limitation, providing, hauling or delivering equipment or materials, or providing labor, transportation, or other service related to a project. "Services" does not include activities unrelated to the project, such as food/beverage vendors, office supply deliveries, and delivery of portable toilets.
- 10.2 The Contractor shall provide coverage, based on proper reporting of classification code and payroll amounts and filing any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor Code, Section 401.011(44) for all employees of the contractor providing services on the project, for the duration of the project.
- 10.3 The Contractor must provide a certificate of coverage to the District prior to being awarded the contract refer to Section 10.2 above.
- 10.4 If the coverage period shown on the Contractor's current certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the project, the Contractor must, prior to the end of the coverage period, file a new certificate of coverage with the District showing that coverage has been extended.
- 10.5 The Contractor shall obtain from each person providing services on a project, and provide to the District:
 - 10.5.1 A certificate of coverage, prior to that person beginning work on the project, so the District will have on file certificates of coverage showing coverage for all persons providing services on the project; and
 - 10.5.2 No later than seven (7) days after receipt by the Contractor, a new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate ends during the duration of the project.
- 10.6 The Contractor shall retain all required certificates of coverage for the duration of the project and for one (1) year thereafter.
- 10.7 The Contractor shall notify the District in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within ten (10) days after the contractor knew or should have known, of any change that materially affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project.
- 10.8 The Contractor shall post on each project site a notice, in the text, form and manner prescribed by the Texas Department of Workers' Compensation, informing all persons providing services on the project that they are required to be covered, and stating how a person may verify coverage and report lack of coverage.
- 10.9 The Contractor shall contractually require each person with whom it contracts to provide services on a project to:
 - 10.9.1 Provide coverage, based on reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts and filing of any coverage agreements, which meets the statutory requirements of Texas Labor Code, Section 401.011(44) for all its employees providing services on the project, for the duration of the project.
 - 10.9.2 Provide to the Contractor, prior to that person beginning work on the project a certificate of coverage showing that coverage is being provided for all employees of the person providing services on the project, for the duration of the project.
 - 10.9.3 Provide the Contractor, prior to the end of coverage period, a new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, if the coverage period shown on the current

certificate of coverage ends during the duration of the project.

- 10.9.4 Obtain from each person with whom it contracts, and provide to the Contractor:
 - 10.9.4.1 A certificate of coverage, prior to the other person beginning work on the project; and
 - the coverage period, if the coverage period shown on the current certificate of a new certificate of coverage showing extension of coverage, prior to the end of coverage ends during the duration of the project.
- 10.9.5 Retain all required certificates of coverage on file for the duration of the project and for one (1) year thereafter.
- 10.9.6 Notify the District in writing by certified mail or personal delivery, within ten (10) days after the person knew or should have known, of any change that materially affects the provision of coverage of any person providing services on the project; and
- 10.9.7 Contractually require each person with whom it contracts to perform as required by paragraphs 10.1. 10.7., with the certificates of coverage to be provided to the person for whom they are providing services.
- 10.10 By signing this contract or providing or causing to be provided a certificate of coverage, the Contractor is representing to the District that all employees of the contractor who will provide services of the project will be covered by workers' compensation coverage for the duration of the project, that the coverage will be based on proper reporting of classification codes and payroll amounts, and that all coverage agreements will be filed with the appropriate insurance carrier or, in the case of a self-insured, with the commission's Division of Self-Insurance Regulation. Providing false or misleading information may subject the contractor to administrative penalties, criminal penalties, civil penalties, or other civil actions.
- 10.11 The Contractor's failure to comply with any of these provisions is a breach of contract by the Contractor which entitles the District to declare the contract void if the Contractor does not remedy the breach within ten (10) days after receipt of notice of breach from the District.

Minimum Specifications

The following requirements and specifications supersede General Requirements where applicable. Contact James Poitevent, General Manager (e-mail: poitevent@att.net. Phone: 713-201-6644, regarding any questions or comments. Please reference bid number RFP 24-08-001.

PART ONE - GENERAL

1.1 PROJECT SCOPE

- 1.1.1 Requirements for Providing Portable Trash Pumps
- 1.1.2 The portable pump shall be delivered to the owner within weeks of contract commencement or as stated in the notice to proceed.

1.2 GENERAL

- 1.2.1 The specifications herein state the minimum requirements of Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5. All bids must be regular in every respect. Unauthorized conditions, limitations, or provisions shall be cause for rejection. The county may consider as "irregular" or "non-responsive", any bid not prepared and submitted in accordance with the bid documents and specification, or any bid lacking sufficient technical literature to enable Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5 to make a reasonable determination of compliance to the specification. It shall be the bidder's responsibility to carefully examine each item of the specification, to offer a completed bid or failure to respond to each section of the technical specification (exception yes or no) will cause the proposal to be rejected without review as "non-responsive". All variances, exceptions, and/or deviations shall be fully described in the appropriate section; deceit in responding to the specification will be cause for rejection.
- 1.2.2 EQUIVALENT PRODUCT: Bids will be accepted for consideration on any make and model that is equal to or superior to the specified quantity one (1) Godwin Dri-Prime® DPC300 (12"X12") Skid Mounted Pump or equal, as interpreted by Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5. A blanket statement that equipment proposed will meet all requirements will not be sufficient to establish equivalence, but will require replay an explanation at each deviation or substitution.
- 1.2.3 INTERPRETATIONS: In order to be fair to all bidders, no oral interpretations will be given to any bidder as to the meaning of the specifications documents or any part thereof. Every request for each a consideration shall be made in writing to Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5. Based upon such inquiry, Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5 may choose to issue an Addendum in accordance with Local Public Contract Laws.
- 1.2.4 GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS: Units described shall be new, unused and of the current year's production. The style of pump being bid must be in production for a minimum of 5 years. (Include users list) Unit shall be of the latest design and in current production completely serviced, ready for work and shall include all standard and optional equipment as specified herein. All bidders must have demonstrated the unit they are bidding prior to bid date.
- 1.2.5 Bidders must have fully stocked parts and a service facility within 60 miles of Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5. Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5 shall have the right to inspect the office and shall be the sold judge of its adequacy to fulfill this requirement.
- 1.2.6 Bidders, on request of Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5, must be prepared to review their specifications with Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5 and must, if requested, also be prepared to provide

a unit for the convenience of Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5. These services, if needed are considered as part of the bidders proposal and will be provided without cost or obligation to Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5.

1.3 SYSTEM DESCRIPTION

- 1.3.1 The pumpset specified in this section will be used to pump storm water.
- 1.3.2 Pump shall be fitted with a fully automatic priming system capable of repeated priming from a completely dry pump casing.
- 1.3.3 The pump, diesel engine, and accessories shall be supplied by the pump manufacturer.

1.4 DESIGN REQUIREMENTS

OPERATING SPEED (MAXIMUM) 1200 RPM
MAXIMUM SOLIDS HANDLING SIZE 3.7 INCHES
IMPELLER DIAMETER 16.9 INCHES
SUCTION SIZE 12 INCHES
DISCHARGE SIZE 12 INCHES
MAXIMUM SUCTION LIFT 28 FEET

1.5 REFERENCES

1.5.1 ANSI B16.1 - Standard for Cast Iron Pipe Flanges and Flanged Fittings.

PART TWO - PRODUCTS

2.1 ACCEPTABLE MANUFACTURERS

2.1.1 The pump shall be Model DPC300, size 12" as manufactured by GODWIN PUMPS, Bridgeport, New Jersey.

2.2 EQUIPMENT

- 2.2.1 CASING, SUCTION COVER, SEPARATION TANK: Pump casting shall be cast iron. It shall be constructed so that the suction flow path is in axial alignment with the impeller eye. There shall be no turns, chambers or valves between the suction line (or inlet) and the impeller.
- 2.2.2 IMPELLERS: The pump impeller shall be an open, 4-bladed, non-clog type with pump out vanes on the back shroud. Impeller shall be cast iron.
- 2.2.3 WEARPLATE: Shall be fully adjustable and replaceable, fabricated of cast iron. Wearplate clearances shall have no relationship to the ability of the pump to achieve a prime.
- 2.2.4 BEARINGS AND SHAFTS: Pump shall be fitted with a bearing bracket which contains the shaft, double angular contact bearings on the drive end, and roller bearings on the wet end. Bearings shall be of adequate size to withstand imposed loads. Minimum I.S.O. L10 bearing life to be 100,000 hours. Impeller shafts shall be of 1½% chromium alloy.
- 2.2.5 SEALS: Seals shall be mechanical self-adjusting type with silicon carbide faces capable of withstanding suction pressures to 30 psi. The mechanical seal shall be cooled and lubricated in an oil bath reservoir, requiring no maintenance or

adjustment. Pump shall be capable of running dry, with no damage, for extended

- periods of time. Elastomers shall be Viton.
- 2.2.6 PUMP SUCTION AND DISCHARGE FLANGES: Shall be cast iron ANSI (B16.1) Class 150, flat faced.
- 2.2.7 PUMP GASKETS: Shall be compressed fiber and/or Teflon.
- 2.2.8 PUMP O-RINGS: Shall be Buna-N.
- 2.2.9 PRIMING SYSTEM: Pump shall be fitted with a fully automatic priming system incorporating a twin-cylinder compressor and air ejector assembly. No vacuum pumps will be accepted. The compressor shall be mounted on the skid base, belt driven from the pump shaft. The compressor shall be self lubricated and cooled. The priming system shall require no fail-safe protection float gear or any adjusting at high or low suction lifts. Pumps with self-priming chambers modified with vacuum priming systems shall not be accepted as equal. The pump must be capable of running totally dry for periods up to 24 hours, then re-priming and returning to normal pumping volumes. Pump and priming system is capable of priming the pump from a completely dry pump casing. The pump shall be capable of static suction lifts to 28 vertical feet, at sea level. It shall also be capable of operation using extended suction lines. Equipment acceptance shall be contingent upon the pump's ability to run continuously at full speed in a completely dry condition for periods up to 24 hours. The engineer may require a demonstration.
- 2.2.10 CHECK VALVE: Pump shall be supplied with an integral check valve mounted On the discharge flange of the pump, allowing unrestricted flow into the impeller. The check valve shall prevent in-line return of flow when the pump is shut off. Non- return valve elastomers shall be Nitrile Rubber, and shall be field replaceable. The check valve flapper and seat shall be replaceable.
- 2.2.11 DRIVE UNIT: The electronic type drive unit shall be a diesel water-cooled engine. Starter shall be 12VDC. Low oil pressure safety shutdown, high temperature shutdown, tachometer, and hour-meter shall be integrated into engine control panel. Battery shall have 180 Amp hour rating. The engine control panel shall include a tachometer and an hour meter. Unit shall be a John Deere 6068H285 Tier 4 or equal, rated at 157 hp (continuous) at 2400 RPM. A certified continuous duty engine curve shall be supplied to the owner/engineer.
- 2.2.12 ENGINE CONTROL PANEL: Engine speed shall be adjustable to operate the pump between maximum and minimum design operation speeds in manual mode. See section 2.3 for Automatic mode.
- 2.2.13 FUEL SOURCE: Integral fuel tank capacity shall be sufficient to provide at least 18 hours of operating time at full load (150 gallon minimum). The engine shall be capable of operating satisfactorily on a commercial grade of distilled No. 2 fuel oil.
- 2.2.14 TRAILER: The enclosed pump and engine shall be mounted in a twin-axle trailer with a pintle type hitch. The trailer shall be designed so that the skid assembly will nest within the frame of the trailer. The skid assembly must bolt into the trailer using Grade 8 bolts. Tires and axles with heavy duty suspension springs and shock absorbers shall be adequately sized for the required load range ratings. Trailers shall be equipped with running lights, stop lights, license plate holder with light, hydraulic braking system, fenders, front and rear support stands, safety chains, side and rear reflectors and a receptacle for towing vehicle. Trailer design shall be in compliance with applicable DOT regulations.

2.2.15 FACTORY PAINTING: Pump, engine, base, and trailer shall be shop primed and finish painted at the place of manufacturer. Materials and thickness for priming shall be in accordance with manufacturer's standards.

2.3 AUTOMATIC STARTING CONTROL SYSTEM

2.3.1 The engine shall be equipped with a factory installed PrimeGuard2 microprocessor-based controller as supplied by Godwin Pumps of America, Inc. and designed to start/stop the engine at a signal supplied by high and low level floats or a 4-20 mA transducer.

2.3.2 ENGINE / PUMP CONTROL SPECIFICATIONS

The engine shall be started, stopped, and controlled by a PrimeGuard2 high Performance digital controller as supplied by Godwin Pumps of America. The controller shall be weather proof enclosed, and contain an external weatherproof 12-position keypad accessible without the need to remove or open any protective cover or enclosure. It shall be designed to start/stop the engine at a signal supplied by high and low level floats or a 4-20 mA transducer. The PrimeGuard2 Pump Controller shall provide the following functions without modification, factory recalibration or change of chips or boards by simply accessing the keypad.

- 2.3.2.1 The keypad shall be a capacitive touch sensing system. No mechanical Switches will be acceptable. The keypad shall operate in extreme temperatures, through ice, snow, mud, grease, etc. and maintain complete weather tight sealing of the PrimeGuard2 Panel.
- 2.3.2.2 In automatic mode, the unit shall conserve energy and go to "sleep" while the pump is not running.
- 2.3.2.3 The PrimeGuard2 panel shall function interchangeably from; float switches, pressure switch, or transducer as well as manual start/stop by selection at the keypad. No other equipment or hardware changes are required.
- 2.3.2.4 The PrimeGuard2 Panel shall be capable of varying the engine speed to maintain a constant level in a process without a change to the panel other than via the keypad.
- 2.3.2.5 The start function can be programmed to provide 3 separate functions each day for 7 days (i.e. a start, warm up, exercise cycle on two separate days at different times and for a varying length of time all via the keypad).
- 2.3.2.6 The panel shall include a Manual-Automatic Button to switch between modes of operation.
 - 2.3.2.6.1 In Manual Mode, the Manual "Start" button shall start the engine and run until the "Stop" button is depressed or an emergency shutdown occurs.
 - 2.3.2.6.2 In Automatic Mode start/stop sequencing shall be initiated by one-normally open and one-normally closed narrow angler float switches, pressure switch, transducer or a signal from a digital input.
- 2.3.2.7 The controller shall integrate the engine safety shut-off for low-oil temperature, high-temperature, and provide over-speed protection.
- 2.3.2.8 The controller shall include standard field adjustable parameters for engine cycle crank timer, shutdown time delay, warm-up time delay, and cool-down time delay

- 2.3.2.9 The Controller shall have two circuit boards, one for the control board and one capacitive touch keypad board. The capacitive keypad circuit boards has eight (8) available relays that can be programmable to output desired parameter on the display and to be used as dry-contacts for communication with City/Municipality SCADA systems. All via the key play without changing relays, chips, printed circuits, or any hardware or software.
- 2.3.2.10 Standard components shall consist of (6) digital inputs, (8) analog inputs, (1) magnetic pick-up input, (2) 20-amp form "C" r elays, (1) RS232 port, (1) RS485 port, (1) RS232/RS485 port, (1) J1939 port, (1) 64X128 pixel full graphic LCD display with backlight, (1) 12 position keypad, LED lamps for visual indication of shutdown (red), warning (amber) and power (green).
- 2.3.2.11 The industrially hardened PrimeGuard2 Panel shall withstand Vibration of 3 g, 3 axis, frequency swept 10-1000 Hz, in an operating temperature Range of 4□ to 176□F (-20□ to 80□C) and an operating humidity range of 0-95% Non- Condensing.

PART THREE - EXECUTION

3.1 MANUFACTURERS SERVICES

- 3.1.1 The manufacturer shall furnish the services of a competent factory representative to do the following:
- 3.1.1.1 Inspect the system prior to delivery, supervise the start up and testing of the system, and certify the system has been properly furnished and is ready for operation.
- 3.1.1.2 Instruct the owner's operating personnel in the proper operation and maintenance of the system for a period of not less than one half day.

3.2 TOOLS AND SPARE PARTS

- 3.2.1 The manufacturer shall furnish the following with the Portable Trash Pump System:
 - 3.2.1.1 A recommended list of spare parts.

3.3 WARRANTY

- 3.3.1 The manufacturer shall furnish the following to the owner:
 - 3.3.1.1 A copy of the engine manufacturer's parts and labor warranty.
 - 3.3.1.2 A One year Parts and Labor Warranty issued by the manufacturer on the Portable Trash Pump System. This warranty must cover all pump parts, including the mechanical seal.

Bidder Information Form

Instructions: Complete the form below. Please provide legible, accurate, and complete contact information. PLEASE PRINT.

| Bid Name & Numbe | er: <u>RFP 24-08-001</u> | | |
|--------------------|-----------------------------|--|--|
| Bidder's Company | /Business Name: | | |
| Bidder's TAX ID Nu | umber: | | |
| Contact Person: _ | | Title: | |
| Phone Number (wi | th area code): | | |
| Alternate Phone No | umber if available (with ar | rea code): | |
| Fax Number (with a | area code): | | |
| Email Address: | | | |
| Mailing Address (P | Please provide a physical a | address for bid bond return, if applicable): | |
| | | | |
| | Address | | |
| | | | |
| | City, State, Zip Code | | |

OFFER TO CONTRACT

To Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5:

We hereby offer and agree to furnish the materials or service in compliance with all terms, conditions, specifications, and amendments in the Invitation for Bid and any written exceptions in the offer. We understand that the items in this Invitation for Bid, including, but not limited to, all required certificates are fully incorporated herein as a material and necessary part of the contract.

The undersigned hereby states, under penalty of perjury, that all information provided is true, accurate, and complete, and states that he/she has the authority to submit this bid, which will result in a binding contract if accepted by Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5.

| We acknowledge receipt of the following amendment(s): I certify, under penalty of perjury, that I have the legal authorization to bind the firm hereunder | | | | | |
|--|-------------------|-------------------|-----------------|-------------------------|--|
| r ceruiy, u | nder penaity of | perjury, maci nav | - | | |
| | | | For clamication | of this offer, contact: | |
| Company | Name | | | | |
| Address | | | Name | | |
| City | State | Zip | Phone | Fax | |
| Signature of | of Person Authori | zed to Sign | Email | | |
| Printed Na | me | | | | |

Acceptance of Offer

The Offer is hereby accepted for the following items: one (1) new Godwin DPC300 12-inch Dri-Prime dewatering pump

The Contractor is now bound to sell the materials or services as described based upon the Invitation for Bid, including all terms, conditions, specifications, amendments, addendum etc., and the Contractor's Offer as accepted by Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5.

This contract shall henceforth be referred to as Contract No. 24-08-001, Contract for one (1) new Godwin DPC300 12-inch Dri-Prime dewatering pump for Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District #5.

The Contractor has not been authorized to commence any billable work or to provide any material or service under this contract until Contractor receives a purchase order and/or a notice to proceed from the District Purchasing Agent.

| Countersigned: | |
|--------------------------------|------|
| | |
| David Papillion | Date |
| President - Board of Directors | |

Bid Form

Attach Vendor Bid Here

| Acknowledgment of Addenda (if any): | |
|-------------------------------------|---------------|
| Addendum 1 | Date Received |
| Addendum 2 | Date Received |
| Addendum 3 | Date Received |

Vendor References

Please list at least three (3) companies or governmental agencies (preferably a municipality) where the same or similar products and/or services as contained in this specification package were recently provided.

| | REFERENCE ONE |
|---------------------------|-----------------|
| Government/Company Name: | |
| Address: | |
| Contact Person and Title: | |
| Phone: | Fax: |
| Contract Period: | Scope of Work: |
| | |
| | REFERENCE TWO |
| Government/Company Name: | |
| Address: | |
| Contact Person and Title: | |
| Phone: | Fax: |
| Contract Period: | Scope of Work: |
| | |
| | REFERENCE THREE |
| Government/Company Name: | |
| Address: | |
| Contact Person and Title: | |
| Phone: | Fax: |
| Contract Period: | Scope of Work: |

Signature Page

As permitted under Article 4413 (32c) V.A.C.S., other governmental entities may wish to

participate under the same terms and conditions contained in this contract (i.e., piggyback). In the event any other entity participates, all purchase orders will be issued directly from and shipped directly to the entity requiring supplies/services. Liberty County Water Control & Improvement District # 5 shall not be held responsible for any orders placed, deliveries made or payment for supplies/services ordered by another entity. Each entity reserves the right to determine their participation in this contract. Would bidder be willing to allow other governmental entities to piggyback off this contract, if awarded, under the same terms and conditions?......Yes No This bid shall remain in effect for ninety (90) days from bid opening and shall be exclusive of federal excise and state and local sales tax (exempt). The undersigned agrees, if this bid is accepted, to furnish any and all items upon which prices are offered, at the price and upon the terms and conditions contained in the Invitation for Bid, Conditions of Bidding, Terms of Contract, and Specifications and all other items made a part of the accepted contract. The undersigned affirms that they are duly authorized to execute the contract, that this company, corporation, firm, partnership or individual has not prepared this bid in collusion with any other bidder, and that the contents of this bid as to prices, terms or conditions of said bid have not been communicated by the undersigned nor by any employee or agent to any other bidder or to any other person(s) engaged in this type of business prior to the official opening of this bid. And further, that neither the bidder nor their employees nor agents have been for the past six (6) months directly nor indirectly concerned in any pool or agreement or combination to control the price of goods or services on, nor to influence any person to bid or not to bid thereon. Bidder (Entity Name) Signature Street & Mailing Address **Print Name** City, State, Zip Date Signed Telephone Number Fax Number

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.

Email Address

Conflict of Interest Questionnaire

| CONFLICT OF INTEREST QUESTIONNAIRE For vendor doing business with local governmental entity | FORM CIQ |
|---|--------------------------------|
| This questionnaire reflects changes made to the law by H.B. 23, 84th Leg., Regular Session. | OFFICE USE ONLY |
| This questionnaire is being filed in accordance with Chapter 176, Local Government Code, by a vendor who has a business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a) with a local governmental entity and the vendor meets requirements under Section 176.006(a). | Date Received |
| By law this questionnaire must be filed with the records administrator of the local governmental entity not later than the 7th business day after the date the vendor becomes aware of facts that require the statement to be filed. See Section 176.006(a-1), Local Government Code. | |
| A vendor commits an offense if the vendor knowingly violates Section 176.006, Local Government Code. An offense under this section is a misdemeanor. | |
| Name of vendor who has a business relationship with local governmental entity. | |
| 2 Check this box if you are filing an update to a previously filed questionnaire. | |
| (The law requires that you file an updated completed questionnaire with the applater than the 7th business day after the date on which you became aware that the origincomplete or inaccurate.) | |
| Name of local government officer about whom the information in this section is being discl | osed. |
| Name of Officer | |
| This section (item 3 including subparts A, B, C, & D) must be completed for each officer vemployment or other business relationship as defined by Section 176.001(1-a), Local Govern pages to this Form CIQ as necessary. A. Is the local government officer named in this section receiving or likely to receive taxable income, from the vendor? | ment Code. Attach additional |
| Yes No | |
| B. Is the vendor receiving or likely to receive taxable income, other than investment income, from government officer named in this section AND the taxable income is not received from the local section. | |
| Yes No | |
| C. Is the filer of this questionnaire employed by a corporation or other business entity wi government officer serves as an officer or director, or holds an ownership interest of one percentage. | |
| Yes No | |
| D. Describe each employment or business and family relationship with the local government | officer named in this section. |
| 4 | |
| | |
| Signature of vendor doing business with the governmental entity | Date |

Adopted 8/7/2015

Good Faith Effort (GFE) Determination Checklist

This information must be submitted with your bid. Bidder intends to utilize subcontractors/subconsultants in the fulfillment of this contract (if awarded). Instructions: In order to determine if a "Good Faith Effort" was made in soliciting HUBs for subcontracting opportunities, the following checklist and supporting documentation shall be completed by the Prime Contractor/Consultant and returned with the Prime Contractor/Consultant's bid. This list contains the minimum efforts that should be put forth by the Prime

subcontracting opportunities, the following checklist and supporting documentation shall be completed by the Prime Contractor/Consultant and returned with the Prime Contractor/Consultant's bid. This list contains the **minimum** efforts that should be put forth by the Prime Contractor/Consultant when attempting to achieve or exceed the goals of HUB Subcontractor participation. The Prime Contractor/Consultant may extend his/her efforts in soliciting HUB Subcontractor participation beyond what is listed below.

Did the Prime Contractor/Consultant

| Subconti | ractor parti | стра | tion beyond what is listed be | low. |
|----------|--------------|------|--|---|
| Did the | Prime Co | ntra | ctor/Consultant | |
| □Yes | □ No | 1. | 1 | consistent with standard and prudent industry act work into the smallest feasible portions, to ubcontractor participation? |
| □ Yes | □ No | 2. | | le number of HUBs, allowing sufficient time f the planned work to be subcontracted? |
| □ Yes | □ No | 3. | adequate information regard | nuinely interested in bidding on a subcontractor ling the project (i.e., plans, specifications, scope nce requirements, and a point of contract within altant's organization)? |
| □ Yes | □ No | 4. | Negotiate in good faith wire HUBs that qualify as lowes | th interested HUBs, and not reject bids from t and responsive bidders? |
| ☐ Yes | □ No | 5. | | rere rejected? Was a written rejection notice, ection, provided to the rejected HUBs? |
| □ Yes | □ No | 6. | If Prime Contractor/Consulexplain the reasons why. | tant has zero (0) HUB participation, please |
| If "No" | | | = | any pertinent documentation with your bid. eet to answer the above questions. |
| Print | ed Name of | Auth | prized Representative | Signature |
| | | Tit | le . | Date |

Notice of Intent (NOI) to Subcontract with Historically Underutilized Business (HUB)

This information must be submitted with your bid.

| Bidder intends to utilize subcontractors | s/subconsultants in the | fulfillment of this of | contract (1f |
|--|-------------------------|------------------------|--------------|
| awarded). | | | ☐ Yes ☐ No |

Instructions for Prime Contractor/Consultant: Bidder shall submit this form with the bid; however, the information below may be submitted after contract award, but prior to beginning performance on the contract. Please submit one form for each HUB Subcontractor/Subconsultant with proper signatures, per the terms and conditions of your contract.

| Contractor Name: | | | HUB: □ Ye | es 🗆 No |
|--|------------------|----------------------|--------------------|----------|
| Address: | | | | |
| Street | City | State | Zip | |
| Phone (with area code): | Fax | (with area code): _ | | |
| Project Title & No.: | | | | |
| Prime Contract Amount: _\$ | | | | |
| HUB Subcontractor Name: | | | | |
| HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity): | | | | |
| Certifying Agency: Tx. Bldg. & Procurement Co | omm. □ Liberty | County ☐ Tx U | nified Certificati | on Prog. |
| Address: | | | | |
| Street | City | State | Zip | |
| Phone (with area code): | Fax | (with area code): _ | | |
| Proposed Subcontract Amount: \$ | _ Pe | ercentage of Prime (| Contract: | <u>%</u> |
| Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed: | | | | |
| | | | | |
| | | | | |
| Printed Name of Contractor Representative | Signature of Rep | resentative | - | Date |
| Printed Name of HUB | Signature of Rep | resentative | I | Date |

NOTE: NOTHING ON THIS NOTICE OF INTENT FORM IS INTENDED TO CONFER ANY RIGHTS, EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, TO ANY THIRD PARTIES.

PAGE 1 OF 4

This information must be submitted with your bid.

| awarded). | | | | |
|---|--|---|------------------|----------|
| Prime Contractor: | | | HUB: Yes | ☐ No |
| HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity): | | | | |
| Address: | | | | |
| Street | City | State | Zip | |
| Phone (with area code): | Fax | (with area code): _ | | |
| Project Title & No.: | | IFB/RFP No.: _ | | |
| Total Contract: _\$ | Total HUB Subcontract(s): | | | |
| Construction HUB Goals: 12.8% MBE:: | | <u>%</u> 12.6% WBE: _ | | <u>9</u> |
| | goals as a guide to c | diversify. | | |
| FOR HUB OFFICE USE ONLY: Verification date HUB Program Office reviewed and veri PART I. HUB SUCONTRACTOR DISCLOSU | fied HUB Sub informatio | | Initials: _ | |
| FOR HUB OFFICE USE ONLY: Verification date HUB Program Office reviewed and veri PART I. HUB SUCONTRACTOR DISCLOSU | fied HUB Sub informatio | on Date: | _ | |
| FOR HUB OFFICE USE ONLY: Verification date HUB Program Office reviewed and veri PART I. HUB SUCONTRACTOR DISCLOSU HUB Subcontractor Name: | fied HUB Sub informatio | on Date: | | |
| FOR HUB OFFICE USE ONLY: Verification date HUB Program Office reviewed and veri PART I. HUB SUCONTRACTOR DISCLOSU | fied HUB Sub informatio | on Date: | | |
| FOR HUB OFFICE USE ONLY: Verification date HUB Program Office reviewed and verification date HUB SUCONTRACTOR DISCLOSU HUB Subcontractor Name: HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity): Certifying Agency: Texas Bldg. & Procurement Address: | fied HUB Sub information | on Date: | ion Prog. | |
| FOR HUB OFFICE USE ONLY: Verification date HUB Program Office reviewed and verification date HUB SUCONTRACTOR DISCLOSU HUB Subcontractor Name: HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity): Certifying Agency: | fied HUB Sub information | on Date: | | |
| FOR HUB OFFICE USE ONLY: Verification date HUB Program Office reviewed and verification date HUB Program Office reviewed and verification date HUB SUCONTRACTOR DISCLOSU HUB Subcontractor Name: HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity): Certifying Agency: Texas Bldg. & Procurement Address: | fied HUB Sub information | on Date: | ion Prog. Zip | |
| FOR HUB OFFICE USE ONLY: Verification date HUB Program Office reviewed and verification date HUB Program Office reviewed and verification date HUB SUCONTRACTOR DISCLOSU HUB Subcontractor Name: HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity): Certifying Agency: Texas Bldg. & Procurement Address: Street | fied HUB Sub information | on Date: as Unified Certificat State | ion Prog. Zip | |
| FOR HUB OFFICE USE ONLY: Verification date HUB Program Office reviewed and verification date HUB Program Office reviewed and verification date HUB SUCONTRACTOR DISCLOSU HUB Subcontractor Name: HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity): Certifying Agency: Texas Bldg. & Procurement Address: Street Contact person: | fied HUB Sub information IRE ent Comm. | n Date: as Unified Certificat State Title: | ion Prog. Zip | |

PAGE 2 OF 4

HUB SUBCONTRACTOR DISCLOSURE

HUB Subcontractor Name: HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity): Certifying Agency: Address: Street City State Zip Title: Contact person: __ Phone (with area code): _____Fax (with area code): Proposed Subcontract Amount: _____ Percentage of Prime Contract: _____ % Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed: HUB Subcontractor Name: ____ HUB Status (Gender & Ethnicity): Certifying Agency: Address: ____ City State Zip Contact person: Title:

All HUB Subcontractor Participation may be verified with the HUB Subcontractor(s) listed on Part I.

Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

Proposed Subcontract Amount: _____ Percentage of Prime Contract: _____

Phone (with area code): _____Fax (with area code):

Bidder Shall Return Completed Form with Offer.

(Duplicate as Needed)

PART I: Continuation Sheet

PAGE 3 OF 4

PART II: STATEMENT OF NON-COMPLIANCE FOR NOT MEETING HUB SUBCONTRACTING GOALS Please complete Good Faith Effort (GFE) Checklist and attach any supporting documentation. Our firm was unable to meet the HUB goals for this project for the following reasons: All subcontractors to be utilized are "Non-HUBs." (Complete Part III) HUBs were solicited but did not respond. HUBs solicited were not competitive. HUBs were unavailable for the following trade(s): Was the Jefferson County HUB Office contacted for assistance in locating HUBs? ☐ Yes □No PART III: DISCLOSURE OF OTHER "NON-HUB" SUBCONTRACTS The bidder shall use this area to provide a listing of all "Non-HUB" Subcontractors, including suppliers, that will perform under this project. A list of those "Non-HUB" Subcontractors the bidder selects, after bid submission, shall be provided to the Purchasing Office not later than five (5) calendar days after being notified that bidder is the apparent low bidder. A list of those "Non-HUB" Subcontractors that are selected after contract award must be provided immediately after their selection. Subcontractor Name: Address: Street City State Zip Contact person: Title: _____Fax (with area code): Phone (with area code): \$ Percentage of Prime Contract: Proposed Subcontract Amount: Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed: Subcontractor Name: Address: City Street State Contact person: Title: ____Fax (with area code): Phone (with area code): \$ Percentage of Prime Contract: Proposed Subcontract Amount: Description of Subcontract Work to be Performed:

| | | P | PAGE 4 OF 4 | | | |
|--|--------------------------------|-------------------------------------|-------------------------------------|--|--------------------|----------------|
| Subcontractor Name: | | | | | | |
| Address: | | | | | | |
| | Street | | City | State | Zip | |
| Contact person: | | | | Title: | | |
| Phone (with area code |): | Fax (wit | h area code): | - | | |
| Proposed Subcontract | Amount: _\$ | 3 | Percentage of F | Prime Contract: | | <u>%</u> |
| Description of Subcontract | Work to be Per | rformed: | | | | |
| Subcontractor Name: | | | | | | |
| Address: | | | | | | |
| | Street | | City | State | Zip | |
| Contact person: | | | | Title: | | |
| Phone (with area code |): | Fax (with | h area code): | - | | |
| Proposed Subcontract | Amount: _\$ | 5 | Percentage of F | rime Contract: | | <u>%</u> |
| Description of Subcontract | Work to be Per | rformed: | | | | |
| | | | | | | |
| I hereby certify that I have r form, and attached any n information on this docume | ecessary suppent may result in | port documenta n my not receivin | ation as requir g a contract awa | ed. I fully understar ard or termination of | nd that intentiona | lly falsifying |
| Name (print or type): | | | | | | |
| Title: | | | | | | |
| Signature: | | | | | | |
| Date: | | | | | | |
| E-mail address: | <u> </u> | | | | | |
| Name (asiata astana) | · | | J | nvoicing for this pro | yect: | |
| Name (print or type): | | | | <u> </u> | | |
| Title: | | | | | | |
| Date: E-mail address: | | | | | | |
| ∟-iiiaii auul€ss. | | | | | | |

House Bill 89 Verification

| I,, the undersigned representative of (company or business name) |
|--|
| (heretofore referred to as company) being an adult over the age of eighteen (18) years of age, after being duly sworn by the undersigned notary, do hereby depose and verify under oath that the company named above, under the provisions of Subtitle F, Title 10, Government Code Chapter 2270: |
| Does not boycott Israel currently; and |
| 2. Will not boycott Israel during the term of the contract. |
| Pursuant to Section 2270.001, Texas Government Code: |
| 1. "Boycott Israel" means refusing to deal with, terminating business activities with, or otherwise taking any action that is intended to penalize, inflict economic harm on, or limit commercial relations specifically with Israel, or with a person or entity doing business in Israel or in an Israeli-controlled territory, but does not include an action made ordinary business purposes; and |
| 2. "Company" means a for-profit sole proprietorship, organization, association, corporation, partnership, joint venture, limited partnership, limited liability partnership, or an limited liability company, including a wholly owned subsidiary, majority-owned subsidiary, parent company or affiliate of those entities or business association that exist to make a profit. |
| Signature of Company Representative |
| Date |
| On this day of, 2024, personally appeared |
| , the above named person, who after by me being duly sworn, did swear and confirm that the above is true and correct. |
| Notary Seal |
| Notary Signature: |
| Date: |

Senate Bill 252 Certification

| On this day, I, Karen J. Stewart, Purchasing Agent for Jeff to Texas Government Code, Chapter 2252, Section 2252. website of the Comptroller of the State of Texas concer Section 806.051, Section 807.051, or Section 2253.253 an not contained on said listing of companies which do by Organization. | 2.152 and Section 2252.153, certify that I did review terning the listing of companies that is identified undant I have ascertained that the below named company | the der y is |
|---|--|--------------------|
| | | |
| Company Name | _ | |
| IFB/RFP/RFQ number | _ | |
| Certification check performed by: | | |
| | _ | |
| Purchasing Representative | _ | |
| Date | _ | |

Bid Affidavit

The undersigned certifies that the bid prices contained in this bid have been carefully reviewed and are submitted as correct and final. Bidder further certifies and agrees to furnish any and/or all Commodities upon which prices are extended at the price offered, and upon the conditions contained in the specifications and the Notice to Bidders.

| STATE OF | | COUNTY OF |
|--------------------------------------|---------------------------------------|--|
| BEFORE ME, | the undersigned autho | ority, a Notary Public in and for the State of, |
| on this day pe | ersonally appeared | , who |
| | ne duly sworn, did depo | (name) |
| "I, | | am a duly authorized officer of/agent |
| for | name) (name of firm) half of the said | and have been duly authorized to execute the |
| loregoing on be | riali of the said | (name of firm) |
| concerned in ar or to influence a | ny pool or contract or cany persons | ow, nor has been for the past six (6) months, directly or indirectly ombination, to control the price of services/commodities bid o to bid or not to bid thereon." |
| Fax: | | Telephone# |
| by:(print nan | ne) | Title: |
| Signature: | | |
| SUBSCRIBED / | AND SWORN to before | e me by the above-named on |
| this the | day of | |
| | | Notary Public in and for the State of |

BYRD ANTI-LOBBYING AMENDMENT CERTIFICATION

certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge, that:

(To be submitted with each bid or offer exceeding \$100,000)

| 1. | No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid, by or on behalf of the undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of an agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, the making of any Federal grant, the making of any Federal loan, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement. |
|-------------------------|---|
| 2. | If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement, the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying," in accordance with its instructions. |
| 3. | The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award documents for all sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly. |
| made impo file th | certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was e or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering this transaction sed by 31, U.S.C. § 1352 (as amended by the Lobbying Disclosure Act of 1995). Any person who fails to ne required certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than \$10,000 and not more than ,000 for each such failure. |
| discl | Contractor certifies or affirms the truthfulness and accuracy of each statement of its certification and osure, if any. In addition, the Contractor understands and agrees that the provisions of 31 U.S.C. § 3801 q., apply to this certification and disclosure, if any. |

Please check the one or the other below:

The undersigned

| No non-federal funds have been use this application/award/contract. | ed or are planned to be used for lobbying in connection with |
|---|--|
| | OR |
| | osure of Lobbying Activities," which describes the use (past obbying in connection with this application/award/contract. |
| Executed thisday of, 20 |)24 |
| Ву: | |
| (Type or Print Name) | (Title of Executing Official) |
| (Signature of Executing Official) | (Name of Organization/Applicant) |